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Independent auditor’s report

To the sharcholders of
Internatonal Financial Advisors [olding — KPSC
Kuwait

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial starements of Tnternational Financial Advisors Holding — KPSC
{the “Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries, (the “Group™), which ¢omprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit ot loss and other comptehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion section
of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Finaneial
Reportng Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We did not receive bank confirmation from a local bank including borrowing balance of KI38,555,000 as at 31
December 2021 from the bank. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the balance
from alternative audit procedures. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to this
amount were necessary.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs). Our responsibilitics
under those standards are further described 1n the Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We ate independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Echics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Cthics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code}, and we have {ulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obmined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion,

Other information included in the Group’s 2021 annual report

Management is responsible for the other information, Other informaton consists of the information included
in the Group’s 2021 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, priot to the date of our anditor’s
report and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Group’s Annual Report after the date of our
auditor’s report,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assutance conclusion thercon.
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Independent Auditor’s Repott to the Shareholders of International Financial Advisors
Holding - KPSC

Othet information included in the Group’s 202t annual report (continued)

In connection with our audic of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identtied above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwisc appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we have obtained
priot to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are requited to report that fact.

As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, as of 31 December 2021, the Group’s
borrowings include a balance amounting to KD8,555,000 where we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence. Accordingly, we were unable 10 conclude whether or not the other information is materially
rrusstated with respect (o this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate apinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below as the key audit
mattets.

Equity Method of Accounting

The Group has mterests in number of investments accounted for using the cquity method of accounting which
are significant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Under the equity method, the Group’s interests
m these investments are initially stated at cost, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the net assets of these investments, less any impairment. The complexity of the Group’s
control environraent and our ability as Group’s auditor (o obtain an appropriate level of understanding of these
entities including any related party transactions. Due to these factors and the significance of the investments
accounted for using equity method of accounting to the Group’s consolidated financial statements we consider
this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, determining the nature and extent of andit procedutes to be
carried out for these investrnents and selecting the significant investments based on the size and/or risk profile
of these entities. During our audit we communicated with the component auditors. We also provided
instructions to the component auditors covering the significant areas and tisks to be addressed including the
identification of related parties and transactions. Furthermore, we evaluated the Group’s methodelogy and
testing of the key assumptions used by the Group in determining the recoverable amount based on value-in-
use. We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is tesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs and for such internal eontrol as managenient determines is necessary to enable rthe
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or erIorL.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management of the Parent Company is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting ptocess.



Cad

Q GrantThornton

A-Detami, Al-alben & Partner:

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of International Financial Advisors
Holding - KPSC

Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objecuves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misscatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or emor and are considered matetial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial staternents.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or exror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
rcsulting from fravd is higher than for one resulting from crror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the override of intetnal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the putpose of expressing an opinion on the effectuveness of the
Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue ag 2 going concern. If we conclude that 4 material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention i our auditor’s report to the relared disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditot’s teport. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represeat the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropnate audit evidence regarding the financal information of the enaties or business
acuvites within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
OpLNIGT.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and sipnificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Those Charged with Governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other mattets that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, rclated safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuved)

From the matters commaunicated with Those Chacged with Governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance i the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these marters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in exttemely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
1o cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communicatuon.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s board of
directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report thar
we obrtained all the information and explanations that we reguired for the purpose of our andit and that the
consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Compantes Law No. 1 of
2016 and its Executive Regulations and by the Parent Company’s Memotrandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Assoeiation, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried ont and that, to the hest of our knowledge and
helief, no wiolations of the Companies Taw No. 1 of 2016, the Executive Regulations, or of the Parent
Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during the
yeat ended 31 Decermber 2021 that might have had a marerial effect on the business or the financial position
of the Parent Company.

We further repott, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of provisions of the Law No. 7 of
2010 regarding Capital Markets Authority (“CMA”) and its relevant regulations have occurred during the year
ended 31 December 2021 that might have had a material effect on the business or financial position of the
Parent Company.

(Licence No, 14344 /
of Grant Thornton — Al-Qatz.(hi, Al-Alban & Partners

[uwait
31 March 2022
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2021 2020
KD KD
Income
Change in fair value of investments at FVTPL 54,539 157 462
Advisory fees 7 950,000 -
Change in fair value of investment properties 18 145,224 (442,973)
Loss on disposal of investment properties {20,574} -
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 8 938,814 (10,168,194}
Foreign exchange gainf(toss) 20,085 (758,656}
Rental income 106,578 -
Gain on settlement of bank loans 9 - 30,264,230
Net loss on disposal of associates 10 (5,751,076)
Commission income 11 - 6,080,945
Cther income 12 285,843 278 844
2,480,438 19,660 685
Expenses and other charges
Staff costs {352,200} (322,144)
Cther operating expenses and charges {804,700} {1,859,302)
Finance costs (598,958} {1,090,312}
Impairment of investment in associates 19¢c - {8,725,965)
(1,755,858} {11,997.723)
Profit for the year before provisions for Zakat and NLST 724,631 7,662,662
Provision for Zakat {6,278) {85.345)
Provision for NLST {15,691) (213,362)
Profit for the year 702,664 7,364,255
Attributable to:
- Shareholders of the Parent Company 635,222 8,229 537
- Non-controlling interests 67,442 (865,282)
702,664 7,364 255
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
shareholders of the Parent Company (Fils) 13 2.55 33.01

The notes vet out on pages 12 fo 57 form an integral part of these consolidared financial staterments.



Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Profit for the year 702,664 7,364,255
Cther comprehensive incomel/({loss):
ftems that will not be reclassified subseguently to profit or loss:
Net change in fair value of investments at FVTQOCI arising during the year 10,181,751 (2,169,622)
Share of other comprehensive (logs¥income of associates {88,401} 2,169,143
10,093,350 {479)
fteins that may be reclassified subsequently fo profit or lass:
Share of other comprehensive incomeXloss} of associates and joint
ventures 3,551,486 (1,478,778
Reserve for financial derivatives transferred to statement of profit or loss on
derecognition of financial liabilities by an associate 597,365 -
Exchange differences transferred to statement of profit or loss on disposal
of a subsidiary by an associate {1,024,043) -
Exchange differences transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss
on disposal of associates - 4,502,471
Reserve for financial derivatives transferred to consclidated statement of
profit or loss on deemed disposal of an associate - 28,315
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations (10,579) 6,658
3,117,229 3,058,667
Total other comprehensive income 13,210,579 3,058,188
Total comprehensive income for the year 13,913,243 10,422,443
Attributable to:
- Shareholders of the Parent Company 13,847,140 10,847,135
- Nan-controlling interests 66,103 {424,692}
13,913,243 10,422,443

The notes set ont on pages 12 fo 57 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statementy.
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Consolidated Financial Stafements
31 ODecember 2021

Consolidated statement of financial position

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Nots 2021 2020
KD KD

Assols
Cash and cash squivalents 14 390,450 1,052,341
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 15 258,457 203,928
Receivables and other assels 16 4,680,224 4,316,458
Due from redated parties 29 19,415,749 19,089,447
Investments at fair vaiue through other comprehensive income 17 2,559,218 5,606,932
Advance for investments 29 - 8,106,011
Investment properties 18 5,319,031 5,302,207
Investment in associates and joint ventures 19 35,367,014 30,303,906
Eguipment 6,619 10,413
Total assets 88,005,678 71,971,643
Liabllities and aquity
Liabifities
Payables and other liabilities 20 13,847,000 14,221,276
Due to related parties 29 6,406,417 6,228,911
Due to banks 14 244,582 241,582
Borrowings 21 28,368,750 28,417,875
Total liabilities 48,864,649 49,109,644
Equity
Share capital 22 26,673,255 26,673,255
Treasury shares 23 (32,757,404) {32,757,404)
Statulory and voluntary reserves 24 32,757,404 32,757,404
Fair value reserve 9,156,274 {124,389}
Fareign cwrency transiation reserve (2,089.817) (1,308,782)
Reserve for financial derivatives 3,253,836 (547,182}
Accumulated losses (3,990,040) (4,902,208}
Total equity attributable to the sharehoklers of the Parent

Company 33,003,508 18,792,684
Non-centrolling interests 6.2 4,137,521 4,069,315
Total equity 37,141,028 22,861,599
Total llabilities and aquilty 86,005,678 71,971,643

3 \ —— e ——
{ ~—

Saieh Saleh Al-Selmi
Vice Chairman and CEQ

Vhe notes set ont on pages 12 ta 57 farm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec,
Note 2021 2020
KD Kb
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year before provisions for Zakat and NLET 724,631 7,662,962
Adjustments for:
Change in fair value of investment properties 18 {145,224) 442,973
Loss on disposal of investment properties 20,574 -
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 8 {938,814) 10,168,194
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss {20,0686) 779,813
Gain on settlernent of bank loans - (29,287,070}
Net loss on disposal of associates - 5,751,076
commission income - (3,022,500}
Dividend income: - {43,835)
Other income {106,787} {189,927)
Depreciation 3,794 3,792
Finance costs 598,958 1,090,312
Impairment of investment in associates 19¢ - 8,725,065
137,066 2,081,455

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (54,53%) (157 ,462)
Receivables and other assets {165,705} {1,295,178)
Due from related parties (362,056} 903,305
Payables and other liabilities {950,789) 861,124
Due 1o related parties 126,924 5,653,633
Net cash {used in)ifrom operating activities (1,269,099} 8,068,787
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to investment in associates and joint ventures {549,259) (7.448,800)
Advance for investments 29a 1,112,236 {6,106,011)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank balance 14 654,268 (654,268)
Proceeds from sate of investment properties 52,488 -
Proceeds from sale of an associate - 12,142,762
Proceeds from partial disposal of associates . 2,208,442
Proceeds from sale of investment at FVTOCI - 2,910,837
Additions for investment properties - 4,015,000}
Dividend income received - 43,935
Net cash fromi{used in) investing activities 1,269,733 {918,103}

The nover ser ont on pages 12 fo 57 form an integral part of these convolidaied finandial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)

el

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 20241 2020
KD KD

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of borrowings - (6,000,000}
Net cash used in financing activities - (5,000,000}
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 634 1,148,684
Foreign currency adjustment (8,248) (39,418)
Effect of foreign exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents - (117,395)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 14 {189,955) (1,181,826)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 14 {197,569) {189,985)
Non-cash transactions

Receivables and other assets {(197,323) -
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (4,799,028) {5,151 ,.8980)
Advance for investments 4,993,775 -
Investment propetties 52,862 103,148
Investment in associates and joint ventures {170.741) 8.151,890
Payables and other liabilities 90,455 -
Due to related parties 30,000 -
Investments at FVTPL - 2,891 282
Due from related parties (103,148)
Borrowings - (2,891,282)

The noter set owt on pages 12 10 57 forme an enfegral part of these consolidared finandial staterrents.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Incorporation and activities of the Parent Company

International Financial Advisors Holding — ICPSC [Formerly: International Financial Advisors - KPSC] (*the
Parent Company”) is a Kuwaiti Public Shareholding Company incotporated on 31 January 1974 under the
Commercial Companies Law No. 15 of 1960 and amendments thereto. The Parent Company is listed on Boursa
Kuwait and Dubai Financial Market.

The Securities Activides Licence issued by the Capital Markets Authority (“CMA™) expired on 29 March 2018
under which the Parent Company carried out certain investment activides. Management did not renew the
Licence. Accordingly, the CMA notified the Parent Company on 6 May 2018 that it is no longer considered a
licenced entity under the CMA regulations. Consequently, the Parent Company is curtently in the process of
disposing the portfolios under management (Note 25).

Furthermore, during prior years the Parent Company was subject to the supervision of the Central Bank of
Kuwait (*CBK”). During 2018, it communicated to the CBK its desire to be removed from CBK register. On
13 November 2018, the CBK notified the Parent Company that its name will be removed from the CBK
register only after the holding of shareholders’ general assembly to change irs legal status and activities.

The shareholders in their Extra-Ordinary General Assembly held on 6 January 2019 approved to change the
legal status of the Parent Company to a Holding Company and amend its activities, which were registered in
the commercial register on 20 Janvary 2019, Accordingly, on 3 [ebruary 2019, the Parent Company was
removed from the CBK registet,

The objectives of the Parent Company were amended to become as follows:

- Management of the parent company’s subsidiartes or participation in management of other companies
in which 1t holds ownership stakes and providing the necessaty support thereto.

- Invesung funds by way of trading in shares, bonds and other financial securities

- Acquisition of properties and movables necessary to casry out the business actvites as allowable by the
law,

- Financing and extending loans to investee companies and providing guarantees for third parties, provided
that the share of the holding company in the investee company is not less than 20%.

- Acquisition of industrial rights and related intellectual properties or any other industial trademarks or
royalties and any other property related thereto, and renting such properties to the subsidiary companies
and others whether inside Fuwait or abroad.

- Using cash surplus to invest in financial pottfolios/funds managed by specialised partics.

The Parent Company has the right to cacry outits activities inside Kuwait or abroad whether directly or through
power of attorney.

The Parent Company is authotized to have interest in or participate with any party or institution carrying out
similar acuvities or those parties who will assist the company in achieving its objectives whether in Kuwait or
abroad. The Parent Company has the right to establish, participate in or acquire such instinitions.

The Group comprises the Parent Company and its subsidiaries as derailed in note 6.

The address of the Parent Company’s registered office is PO Box 4694, Safat 13047, State of Kuwait.

The Parent Company’s boatd of directors approved these consolidated financial statements for issuc on
31 March 2022 and are subject to the approval of the general assembly of the sharcholders.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board {(“IASB™), and
Interpretations ssued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of the
TIASE.

3 Changes in accounting policies

31 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
No new amendments or standards were effective for the current treporting period except for the extension of
the IFRS 16 amendment discussed below.

Amendment to IFRS 16 - COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The IFRS 16 Leases amendment relate to Covid19 Rent Related Concessions that has been extended undl 20
June 2022. The practical expedient allows lessees to elect to not carry out an assessment to decide whether a
COVID-19-related rent concession recerved is a lease modification. The lessee is permitied to account for the
rent concession as if the change is not a lease modification.

3.2 TASB Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of this consolidated financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but are not yet cffective, and have not
been adopted early by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements, Information on new
standards, amcndments and interpretations that arc expected to be relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but
arc not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial information,

Standard or Interpretation Effective for annua! periods beginning
IFRS 10 and LAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets berween an Investor

and 1ts Associate or Joint Venture — Amendments No stated date

[FRS 3 Amendment ~ Reference to the conceprual framework 1 January 2022

IAS 1 Amendments- Classification of current and non-current 1 January 2023

IAS 1 Amendments- Disclosure of accounting policies 1 January 2023

IAS 8 Amendments- Definition of accounting estumates - 1 January 2023

IAS 16 — Amendments — Proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022

IAS 37 —~ Amendments — Onerous conttacts - Cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cyele 1 January 2022

IFRS 10 and TAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets hetween an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture - Amendments

The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and TAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (2011) clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its associate
ot joint ventuare, as follows:

® require tull recogniton in the investor's tinancial statements of gams and losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business {as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)

¢ require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute 2 busincss, ie. a
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated investors® interests in that associate or
joint venture,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
3.2 TASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture = Amendments {continued)

These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or contribution
of assets occurs by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting m loss of
control of the subsidiary), or by the ditect sale of the assets themselves.

IASB has postponed the cffective date indefinitely until other projects are completed. Howevcer, carly
implementation is allowed. Management anticipates that the application of these amendments may have an
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future should such transactons arise.

IFRS 3 - Reference to the concepuual framework

The amendments add a requirement that, for obligations within the scope of IAS 37, an acquirer applies TAS
37 to determine whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a levy
that would be within the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether the
obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition darte. The amendments
also add an explicit statement thar an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired in 2 business
combination

Management does not antcipate that the adoption of the amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments - Classification of current ot non-current

The amendments to IAS 1 clarify the classification of a liability as either current or non-current is based on the
entity’s rights at the end of the reporting period. Stating management expectations around whether they will
defer settlement or not does not impact the classification of the liability. Ir has added guidance about lending
conditions and how these can itnpact classification and has included requirements for liabilities that can be
settled using an entity’s own instruments.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendments i the furure will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments — Disclosure of accounting policies

The amendments o IAS 1 require entities to disclose material accounting policies instead of significant
accounting pelicies. The amendmenis clarify that accounting policy informadon may be material because of
its nature, even if the related amounts are unmaterial.

Management docs not anticipate that the adoption of the amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statcments.

IAS 8 Amendments — Definition of accounting estimates

The amendments to [AS 8 provide an exemption from the switial resognetion exemption provided in TAS 12.15(b)
and TAS 12.24. Accordingly, the ininal recognition exemption does not apply to transacuons in which equal
amounts of deducuble and taxable temporary differences arise on mitial recogrution. This is also cxplained in
the newly inserred paragraph [AS 12.22A.

Management does not antcipate that the adopdon of the amendments 1n the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

3.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IAS 16 Amendments - Proceeds befote intended use

The amendment prohibits an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts
recetved from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an
entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendment in the future will have 2 significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financaial statements.

IAS 37 Amendments ~ Onerous contracts- Cost of fulfilling a contract
The amendments specify which costs an entity includes when asscssing whether a contract will be loss-making.

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling
the centract includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocadon of other costs that
relate direcdy to fullilling contracts.

The amendments are only to be applied to contracts for which an entty has not yet fulfilled all of its obligations
at the beginning of the annual period in which it first applies the amendments.

Management does not anucipate that the adoption of the amendment in the futute will have 2 significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendment to TAS 1 simplifies the applicauon of IFRS 1 by a subsidiary that becomes a fitst-time adopter
after its parent in relation 1o the measurement of cumulative translation differences. Subsidiary that is a firse-
time adopter latcr than its parent might have been required to keep two parallel sets of accounting records for
cumulative translation differences based on different dates of transition o TFRSs. However, the amendment
extends the exemption to cumulative translation differences to reduce costs for first-time adopters.

Amendment to IFRS % relates o the ‘10 per cent’ Test for Derecognidon of Financial Liabilities ~ In
determining wherher to derecognise a financial liability that has been modified or exchanged, an entity assesses
whether the terms are substantially different. The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when
assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of
the original financial liability.

Amendment to [FRS 16 avoids the potential for confusion in applying IFRS 16 Leases because of how
[ustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 had illustrated the requitements for lease incentives. Before the
amendment, Illustrative Example 13 had included as part of the fact pattern a reimbursement relating to
leasehold improvements; the example had not explained clearly enough the conclusion as to whether the
reimbursement would mect the definition of a lease incentive in IFRS 16. The IASB decided to remove the
potential for confusion by deleting from Tllustrative Example 15 the reimbursement relating to leasehold
improvements,

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies and measurements bases adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are summarised below:

4.1 Basis of preparation and fundamental accounting concept

4.1.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared under historical cost convention except
for investments at fair value through profit or loss, investments at fair value through other comprehensive
incorne and investment properties that have been measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinavs (“KID™) which is the functional
and presentanon currency of the Parent Company.

The Group has elected to present the “statement of comprehensive income” in two statements: the “staterment
of profit or loss” and a “‘statement of profit or loss and othet comprehensive income”,

4.1.2 Fundamenral accounting concept
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the
Group will be able to meet the mandatory repayment terms of its botrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by KID3,507,497 which cast
significant doubt about its ability to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the notmal coutse of business.
‘The cutrent liabilities include instalments of borrowings of KD 10,536,375 which are contractually due within
12 months trom the end of the reporting period, and due to related parties of IKD5,973,133 which do not have
any specific repayment terms.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on 4 going concemn basis, which assumes that the
Group will be able to meet the mandatory repayment terms of the borrowings taking into consideration the
following assumptions:

- The Group has rccopnised a net profit of KD702,664 for the year ended 31 December 2021.

- Addidonal repayment required will be met out from operating cash flows.

- The Group has access to a sufficient and variety of sources of tunding and has a reasonable expectadon
that iabihties mataring within 12 months can be paid or rescheduled.

- The Group mainrams sufficient cash to mect liquidity needs in the event of an unforeseen interruption
in cash flows.

As described above, management has a reasonable expectation that the Group has taken measures and has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fumire Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Had the gomng concern basis not been used, adjustments would be made relating to the recoverability of
recorded asset amounts or to the amount of labilities to reflect the fact that the Group may be required to
realize its assets and extinguush jts labilities other than in the normal course of business, at amounts different
from those stated in the conselidated financial statements.

4,2 Basis of consolidation

‘The parent controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returas from its involvement with the
subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary. The financial
statements of the sub31d1mes are prepared for reporting dates which ar¢ typically not more than three months
from that of the Parent Compmy, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made for the effect of
any significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the reporting date of the Parent
Company’s financial statements,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

All transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation, including unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between Group companies. Whete unrealised losses on intra-Group asset sales
are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from a Group perspective.

Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaties have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.
Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s profit or loss and
net assets that is not held by the Group. ‘The Group attributes total comptrehensive income or loss of
subsidiaties between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective
ownership interests.

When a controlling interest in the subsidiartes is disposed of, the diffetencc between the selling price and the
net asset value plus cumulative translation difference and goodwill is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The fair value of any investment retzined in the former subsidiaty at the date when control is
lost 1s regarded as the fair value on initial recogn.ltlon for subsequent accountmg under IFRS 9 when applicable,
or the cost on initial recogmtton of an Investment in an associate or a }omt venturc.

ITowever, changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The cartying amount of the Group’s intetests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-contelling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Parent Company.

4.3 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisiion method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisiion-date fair
values of assefs transferced, Labilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes the
fait value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree cither at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the business combination 1s achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair valve of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fait valuc at the acquisition date through consolidated statement
of profit or loss,

The Group recogniscs identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless
of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s [inancial statements priot to the acquisition.
Assets acquired and lLiabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classificanon and designation 1n accordance with the contractual terms, economic citcumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

4.3 Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of the
sumn of a) fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquire and c} acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquire, over the acquisition-
date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum calculated
above, the excess amount (1. gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
ot loss immediately.

4.4 Invesument in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a jomnt venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. Joint venture is an arrangement
that the Group controls jointly with one or more other investor, and over which the Group has rights to a
share of the arrangement’s net assets rather than direct rights to underlying assets and obligations for underlying
liabilities.

The Group’s investment in associates and joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method of
accountmg, i.e. on the statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the net assets of the associate or joint venture, less any impairment and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of associate or joint venture.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate and joint venture recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwiil.

The goodwill 1s included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part
of that investment. Any excess of the Parent Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
the consohdated statement of profit or loss,

Distributions received fxom the associate and joint venture reduce the carrying amount of the investment.
Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the Group’s share in the associate
and joint venture asising from changes in the equity of the associate and joint venture. Changes in the Group’s
share in associate’s /joint venture’s equity are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

When the Group’s share of losses m an associate equal or exceeds its interest in the associate and joint venture,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group docs not recognise Further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate and joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions with associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s share in the associate
and joint venture. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence of impairment
in the asset transferred.

An assessment for impairment of investment in associates and joint venture is performed when there is an
indication that the asset has been impaired, or that impairment losses recognised in priot years no longer exist.

The financial statements of the associate and joint venture are prepared either to the Parent Company’s
reporting date ot to a date not earlier than thtee months of the Parent Company’s reporting date using
consistent accounting policies. Where practicable, adjustments arc made for the effect of significant
transactions or other events that occurred between the reporting date of the associates and the Parent
Company’s reporting date,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

4.4 Investment in associates and joint ventures (continued)

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retaining
investment at its fair value. Any differences between the carrying amount of the assoctate and joint venture
upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal
ate recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

However, when the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

45 Segment reporting

The Group has four operating scgments: the asscts management, teeasury and investments, real estate and
other. In identifying these opetating segments, management generally follows the Group's service lines
representing its main products and services. Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each
requires different approaches and other resources, All inter-segrment transactions are carried out atarm’s length
prices.

For management purposes, the Group uses the same measurement policies as those used in its consolidated
financial statements. In additon, assets or liabilities which ace nor directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

4.6 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured based on the considetaton to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with
a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Croup recognises revenue when it
transfers service to a customer.

The Group follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with 2 customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5 Recopnising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

The total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the various pecformance obligations based on
their relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time ot over time, when (ot as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised services to its customers.

The Group recognises contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied pecformance
obligations and reports these amounts, if any, as other liabilitics in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Similarly, if the Group satisfies a performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the
Group recognises either 2 contract asset or a receivable, if any, in its statement of financial position, depending
on whether something other than the passage of dme is required before the consideration is due.

4.6.1  Fees from advisoty services

Fees arising for rendering specific advisory services, brokerage services, equity and debt placement transactions
for a thitd patty or arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party
ate recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.7 Rental income
Rental income arising from investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

4.8 Interest income on financial assets
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

4.9 Dividend income
Dividend mcome is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

410  Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss upon utlisation of the scrvice or
at the date of their origin.

4.11 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attriburable to the acquisiton, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of Ume that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in finance costs.

4,12 Taxation

4.12.1 National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

NLST 1s calculated in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions No, 24 of
2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the Group after deducting ditectors’ fees for the year. As per law, income
from associates and subsidiaries, cash dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST have to
be deducted from the profit for the year.

4.12.2 Zakat

Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Group attributable to the shareholders of the
Parent Company in accordance with the Ministry of Finance resolution No, 58/2007 effective from 10
December 2007,

Under the Zakat regulations, no carry forward of losses o the future years or any carry back 1o priot years is
permitted.

4.13  Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. The
Group depreciates its property and equipment using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off the
assets over their estimated useful economic lives.

The useful] life and depreention method are reviewed periodically to ensute that the method and petiod of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits arising from items of property.

Marterial residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, bur at least annually.
When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are climinated from the accounts and

any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4,14  Investment properties
Investment propertics are propettics held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and are accounted for
using the fair value model.

Investment propertics arc initially measured at cost. Subsequently, investment properties are revalued annually
and are included in the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair values. These values are
supported by market evidence and are determined by external professional valuers with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the investment property. Any gain or loss tesultng from
change in the fair value or the sale of an investment property 1s immediately recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “change in fair value of investment properties”.

Investment properties are de-recognised when cither they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any
gan or loss resulting from disposal of an investment property is immediately recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “gain/loss on sale of investment properties”.

Transfers are made to or {rom investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
mnvestment property to ownet-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value
at the date of change i use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of
change 1n use.

4.15 Leased assets

The Group av a fesvee
A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset {the underlying
asset) for a period of tme in exchange for consideration’.

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evalvations which are
whether:

*  the contract contains an identitied asset, which 1s either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identificd at the time the asset is made available to the Group

* the Group has the right to obtain subsrantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract

¢+ the Group has the right to direct the use of the identfied asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asser is used throughout
the period of use.

The Group has elected to account for shorr-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedicents. Instead of recognising a right-of-usc asset and lease Lability, the payments in relation to these are
recogniscd as an expense in profit or ioss on a straight-line basis over the lease rerm.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee.

Atlease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and 4 lease liability on the balance sheet
measured as follows:
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.15 Leased assets (continued)

Right-gf-uie avset

The right-of-use asset 1s measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
mntual direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end
of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives
teceived).

Subsequent to initial measurement, the Group depreciates the right-af-use assets on a straight-line basis from
the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asser or the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the tight-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Leare lrabuizty

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present valuc of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments mcluded in the measurement of the lease lability are made up of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to tniual measurement, the liability is reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
When the lease liability 1s remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profir and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

416  Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest level within
the group at which management monitors goodwill.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated ({determined by the Group’s management as
equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least annually. All other individual assets or
cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impaument loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. To determine
the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for
umpairment resting procedutes are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary
to exclude the effects of futire reorganisations and assct enhancements. Discount factors are determined
individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such
as market and asset-specific risks factors.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

416  Impaitment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses reduce first the carrying amount of uny goodwill allocated to that asser, Any remaining
impairment loss 1s charged pro rata to the other assets. With the excepdon of goodwill, all assets are
subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An
impairment charge is reversed if the asset’s 1s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

4.17 Financial instruments

4.17.1 Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initally at fair value adjusted by transactions costs,
except for those carried at fair value through profit ot loss which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are described below.

A financial asset {or, where applicable a patt of financil asset or patt of group of similar financial assets) 1s
primarily derecognised when:

* rnghts to reccive cash flows from the assets have expired;

* the Group has wansferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement;
and either

{a) the Group has transferred substantially all the tisks and rewards of the asset or
(b} the Group has neither wansferred nor retained substantially 21l risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset ot has entered into a pass-
through arrangement and has neither transterred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, a new asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
mvolvement in the asset,

A financial hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is teplaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an exssting liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the onginal liability and the recognition of 4 new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in consolidated statcment of profit or loss.

4.17.2  Classification of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurcment, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon
inital recognition:

¢ fimnancial assets at amortised cost
® Nnancial aseets at fawr value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
¢ financial assers at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.17  Financial insttuments (continued)

4.17.2 Classificarion of financial assets (contined)
The classification 15 determined by both:

¢ the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset
¢  the contractual cash How characteristics of the financial asset.

The Group may make the following irrevocable clection/designation at initial recognition of a finaneial asset:

* the Group may itrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive mcome if certain criteria are met (see note 4.17.3 below); and

* the Group may irtevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCIT
ctitetia as measured at FVTIPL if doing so eliminates or significanty reduces an accounting mismatch.

4.17.3 Subsequent ineasurement of financial asseis

a) Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

¢ they are held within 2 business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its
contractual cash flows

¢  the contractual terms of the financial assets give tise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost comprise of the following:

- Carh and cash equivalents

Cash and ¢ash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly
liquid investuments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant nisk of changes in valuc.

- Recervables and other avsets
Accounts recetvable are stated at original invoice amount less allowance for any uncollectible amounts. Bad
debts are written off as incurred.

Recetvables which are not categorised under any of the above ace classified as “other assets™.
= Due from related parties

Amounts receivable as a result of transactions with related parties and cash advances to related parties are
included under due from related partcs.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (¢continued)

417  Financial insttuments (continued)
4.17.3 Subsequent measurement of financial assets (contimzed)

b) Financfal assets at FVTOCI
The Group’s fimancial assets at FVTOCI comprise investment in equity shares. These represent investments in
equity shares of various companies and include both quoted and unquoted.

On 1nitral recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument - by - instrument basis)
to designate investments mn equity (nstruments as at FVTOCI Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the
equity investment s held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination.

A hnancial asset is held for wading if:
* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near termy; or

¢ on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short - term profit - taking; or

* itis a derivative {except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effecuve hedging instrument).

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve. The cumulative gain or loss is
transferred to retained earnings within the consolidated statement of changes in equity on de-recognition.

Drividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised ia the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

¢} Financial assets at FVIPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for measurement at amortised cost or ['VTOCI are categorised at
fair value through profit and loss. Further, icrespective of business model financial assets whose contracrual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL. The eategory also
contains investments in equity shares.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists,

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL comptise investment in equity shares,

4.17.4 Impairment of Anancial assets

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL and equity investments at FVTOCI are subject to review for
impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets 1s impaired. Different criteria to detcrmine impairment ate applied for each
category of financial asscts, which are described below.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.17  Financial instruments

4.17.4 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on financial assets ar amortised cost
ot at FYTOCL

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estumated as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are duc to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
recetve. The amount of expected credit losses is npdated at each reporting date to treflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the respective financial asset.

The measurement of expected credit losses 13 a function of the probability of default, loss given default (ie. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward - looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount
at the reporting date.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for receivables and other assets. The expected credit losses on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s histotical credit loss cxperience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general cconomic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast dircction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
whete appropriate.

Lifeume ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL tepresents the portion of lifedme ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
teporting date.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for all financial
assets with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt insttuments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment tevaluation reserve, and does not reduce the
carrying amount of the financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in
the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL
are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which simplified approach was used.

4.17.5  Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial hiabilities include payables and other liabilities, due to related parties, due to banks and
borrowings.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
&  Financial iabilities at amortised cost

These are stated using etfective interest rate method. Payables and other liabilities, due to related parties, due
to banks and borrowings are classified as financtal labilities other than at FVIPL.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

417  Financial instruments (continued)

4.47.5 Classification and subsequent measuremenr of financiaf liabilities (continued)
¢ Financial fabiliries at amortised cost (continued)

- Payables and other fabilitses
Payables and other liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether hilled or not.

- Duwe tp related parties
Amounts due as 2 result of tansactions with related partics and cash advances from related parties are included
under duc to related partics.

- Due o banks
Due to banks represents the portion unpaid interest payable.

- Borrowings

All borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cffective interest rate method. Gains and
losses are recognsed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate method (EIR} amortisation process.

4.18 Amortised cost of financial instruments

This is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. The calculation takes
into account any premium ok discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an mtegral
part of the etfective interest rate.

419 Trade and settlement date accounting

All ‘regular way’ purchases and sales of financial assets are tecognised on the trade date ie. the date that the
entity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

4.20  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial posttion if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offsct the recognised amounts
and there 15 an intention to settle on a nct basis, or to realise the asscts and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

4.21 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is derermined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long posttions and ask price for short
posifions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis ot other valuation
rodels.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are provided
in Note 30.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

4.22  Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capiral represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Statutory and voluntary reserves comprise appropriations of current and prior period profits in accordance with
the requirements of the companies’ law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association.

Fair value reserve — comprises gains and losses relating to investments at FVTOCI.

Foreign currency translation reserve — comptises foreign currency translation differences arising from the
translation of financial statements of the Group’s foreign entities into KD.

Reserve for financial detvatives — comprises gains and losscs relating to derivatve Labiliies.
Accumulated losses include all current and prior period profits and losses.
All transactons with shareholders of the Group are recorded separately within equity,

Dividend dsstributions payable to equity shareholders are included in payables and other liabilities when the
dividends have been approved in a meeting of the general assembly,

4.23  Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group
and not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares ate accounted for using the cost method. Under this
method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity.

When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in equity, {the “gain of the sale
of treasury shares reserve”), which is not distributable. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to
the extent of the credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are chatged to retained earnings then to the
voluntary reserve and statetoty reserve. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of stock dividend
shates increases the number of treasuty shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per sharc withour
aftecting the total cost of treasury shates.

4.24  Provisions, contingent asscts and contingent liabilitics

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it 1s probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may stll be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporung date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the
present obligation. Where there are 2 number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an ocutflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when an inflow
of economic benefits 1s probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

4.25  Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of setvice benefits to its employees. The entilement to these benefits is based upon the
employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum setvice petiod in accordance
with relevant labour law and the employees’ contracts. The expected costs of these benefits are acerued over the
period of employment. This Lability, which is unfunded, represents the amount payable to each employee as a
tesult of tezmination on the reporting date.

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, in additon to the end of service benefits the Group makes
contubutions to the Public Institution for Social Security calculated as a percentage of the employees” salaries.

4,26 Fiduciary assets
Assets and related deposits held in trust ot in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets or liabiliries of the
Group and accordingly are not included in these consolidated financial statements.

4.27  Related party transactions

Related parties represent board of directors, key management personnel and their close family members and
othet related parties such as major shareholders and companies in which board of directors and key
management personnel of the Group are principal owners or over which they are able to exercise significant
influence or joint control.

4,28  Foreign currency translation

4.28.1 Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional curtency of the respective Group entity, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Fotcign cxchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the re-measurerent of moncrary items
denominated 1n foreign currency at year-end exchange rates arc recognised in profit oc loss. Non-monetary
items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rates at
the transacdon date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are wanslated using the
exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined. Translation difference on non-monetary asset
classified as, “falr value through profit or loss™ is reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit ot loss and “available for sale” are reported as part of the cumulative change
in fair value reserve within other comprehensive income.

4.28.2 Foreign operations

In the Group’s financial statements, all assets, liabilitics and transactions of Group entities with a funcrional
currency other than the KID are translated into KID upon ¢onsolidation. The functional eutrency of the entities
1n the Group has remained unchanged during the reporting period.

On consclidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into KID at the closing rate at the reporting date.
Gooduwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into KID at the closing rate. Income and expenses have been
translated into KD at the average rate over the reporting period. Exchange differences are charged/credited to
other comprehensive income and recognised in the foreign curtency translation reserve in equity. On disposal
of a toreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in equity are reclassified to
profit or loss and are recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s consclidated financial statetnents requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
agsumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that requite a matetial adjustment o the carrying amount
of the asset of lability affected in futuce periods.

5.1 Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following significant
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the conselidated financial
statements:

5.1.1  Business model assessment

The Group classifies financial assets after performing the business model rest (please see accounting policy for
financial instruments sections in note 4.17). This test includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured and the risks that
affect the performance of the assets. Monitoring 1s part of the Group’s continuous assessment of whether the
business model for which the temaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change int business model and $0 2 prospective change to the classification
of those assets.

5.1.2  Judgements in determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations
The derermination of the whether or not performance obligation criterial set out in IFRS 15 relating to transfer
of control of goods to customers has been sadsfied requires significant judgement.

5.1.3  Business combinations

Management uses valuation techniques in determining the fair values of the various elements of a business
combination. Particularly, the fair value of contingent consideration is dependent on the outcome of many
variables that affect future profitability.

5.1.4  Fair values of assets and liabilities acquired
The determination of the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilites as a result of business
combination requires significant judgement.

5.1.5 Controf assessment

When determining control, management considers whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activitics of an investee on its own to generate returns for itself. The assessment of relevant activities
and ability to use its power to affect variable rehirn requires considerable judgement.

5.1.6  Significant influence
Significant influence exists when the size of an enlity’s own votng rights reladve to the size and dispersion of
other vote holders, give the entty the practical ability unilaterally to direct the relevant acuvities of the company.

5.1.7  Classification of real estate

Management decides on acquisition of a real estate whether it should be classified as wading, or investment
property. Such judgement at acquisition determines whether these propertes are subsequently measured at cost
or net realisable value whichever is lower or faw value.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
(continued)
51 Significant management judgments (continued)

51.7  Classification of real estate (continued)
The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The Group classifies properiy as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental income or for capital
appreciation, or for undcetermined future use.

5.2 Estimation uncertainty

Information about estimates and assurnptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be substantially
different.

5.2.1  Impairment of financial assets

Measurement of estimated credit losses invoives estimates of loss given defavlt and probability of default. Loss
given default is an estimate of the loss arising in case of default by customer. Probability of default is an estimate
of the likelihood of default in the future. The Group based these cstimates using reasonable and supportable
forward looking mformation, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic
drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

An estimate of the collectible amount of financial assets at amortised costs is made when collecion of the full
amount is no longer probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an
individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which arc past due, arc assessed collectively
and a provision applied accotding to the length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.

5.2.2  Fairvalue of financial instrumcnts

Management apply valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments where active market
quotes arc not available. This requires management to develop estimates and assumptions based on marlket
inputs, using observable data that marker participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where such data is
not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated fair values of financial instruments may vary
from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

5.2.3 Impairment of associates and joint ventires

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in associates and joint ventires, at each reporting date based on
existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate and joint venture is impaired. If this is
the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated starement
of profit or loss.

5.2.4  Revaluation of investiment propetties

The Group carries 1ts investment property at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the
consolidated statement of profir or loss. The Group engaged independent valuation specialists to determine
fair values and the valuers have used valuation techniques to arrive at these fair values. These estimated fair
values of mnvestment propetty may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length
transaction at the reporting date,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Subsidiary companies

6.1 Details of the Group’s consolidated subsidiaries which are directly owned by the Parent Company at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Country of Ownership
Name of the subsidiary incorporation percentage Principal activity
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
Y% %
First Takaful Insurance Company — KPSC Kuwait 53.45 6345 Insurance
Gulf Real Estate Co. —WLL Kuwait 46.32 46.32 Real estate
IFA Aviation Co. ~ K8CC Kuwart 74.20 74,80  Aviation
Radeem Real Estate Co. — SAL Lebanon 99.90 8990 Real estate
Dana Real Estate Co, ~ SAL Lebanon 96.67 96,67 Real estate

The Group has pledged all of its equity interest in First Takaful Tnsurance Company — KPSC against

borrowings (nate 21) and certain due to related parties (note 29).

6.2 Subsidiaries with material non-conttolling interests
The Group ncludes one subsidiary with material non-controlling interests (NCI):

Proportion of ownership

interests and voting Profit/{loss) allocated to
Name rights held by the NCI NCI Accumulated NCI
31 Dec. 31 Dec, 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
%o % KD KD KD KD
First Takaful Insurance Company —
KPSC 46.55 46.55 29,985  (815623) 3,754,156 3,724,171
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests 37,457 (49,650) 383,365 345,144
67,442  (865282) 4137521 4,069,315

No dividends were paid to the NCI during the years 2021 and 2020.

Suminarised financial information for the above subsidiary, before intragroup eliminations, 1s set out below:

Ferst Takaful Insurance Company — KPSC

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2021 2020

KD KD
Mon-current assets 12,456,305 12,981,124
Current assets 868,332 1,274,243
Total assets 13,324 837 14,255,367
Non-current liabilities 5,028,275 5,797,219
Current kahilities 232,164 458,364
Total liabilities 5,260,43% 6,255,583
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company 4,310,042 4275613
Non-controlling interests 3,754,156 3,724,171
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Subsidiary companies (continued)

6.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (continued)

Year ended Year ended

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Pareni
Company 34,429 (4,881,159)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to NCI 29,985 {815,623)
Profit/(loss) for the year 64,414 (5,696,782)

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to the shareholders
of the Parent Company - 4,495,354

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to NCI - 445 483
Total other comprehensive income for the year - 4,940,817
Taotal comprehensive incomef(loss) for the year attributable to the

shareholders of the Parent Company 34,429 {385,805)
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year attributable to NCY 29,985 (370,160)
Total comprehensive incomef{loss) for the year 64,414 (755,965)

Yearended Year ended

31 Dec. 3 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Net cash flow used in operating activities {1,269,698) (1,365,698}
Net cash from Investing activities 1,269,693 1,367,483
Net cash flow {5) 1,785

7 Advisory fees

Advisory fees represent services provided by the Parent Company to related parties that include KID&55,000

related to agreements between these related parties and one of the Group’s subsidiaries.

8 Share of results of associates and joint ventures
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Share of results of associates and joint ventures (nates 19.1 and 19.2) 515,136 (10,168, 194)
Reserve for financial derivatives transfarred to statement of profit or loss on
derecognition of financial liabilities by an associate {597,365) -
Exchange differences transferred to statement of profit or loss on disposal of a
subsidiary by an associate 1,021,043 -
938,814 {10,168,194)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

9 Gain on settlement of borrowings

a)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Parent Company signed 2 final settlement contract with
a foreign bank and Al-Nozha Al-Dawliya Real Estate Company WLL ("Al Nozha" - a telated party).
As per the terms of the agreement, the Parent Company setiled USD9,540,612 (equivalent to
KID2,891,282) out of the total ourstanding USD loan by way of transferring cettain investnents at fair
value through profit or loss. Pursuant to the contract settlement, and as a result of the above transfer,
the foreign bank agreed to sell and assign to Al-Nozha the remaining balances of the loans including
interest amounting to USD72,029440 and Euro22 485277, with all the related securities and
guarantees. As a result, the Parent Company’s obligations towards the foreipn bank has been setded.

Further, during the year ended 31 December 2020, the Parent Company and Al Nozha signed a
borrowing agreement whereby Al Nozha agteed to waive off the entire Euro loan and interest of
Euro22,485,277 and part of the USD loan and interest of USD4,529,440 which resulted in reduction
of the total borrowings from these loans by KID10,223,646. Consequently, the Parent Company
recorded a gain of KID10,223 646.

by  The Patent Company had outstanding loan amounting to KD24,000,000 due to a local bank and related
accrued interest of KID2,040,584. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Parent Company
signed a settlement agreement with the bank. In accordance with the terms of the agreement, the Parent
Company paid KIDD6,000,000 as tull and final settlement for the loan and the unpaid interest, and the
lender waived-off the remaining balance of KID20,040,534. The gain of KID20,040,584 on reduction
of the bortowings has been recognised in the consolidated profit or loss of the previous year.

10 Net loss on disposal of associates

Year ended Year ended

31 Dec. 31 Dec,

2021 2020

KD KD

Loss on sale of an associate (a) - (4,700,119}
Deemed loss on disposal of associates (h) - {1,302,512}
lLoss on partial disposal of an associate (¢} - {663,992)
Gain on discontinuation of equity method accourting for an associate {d} - 815,547
- (5,751,076)
a} During the prior year, one of the Group’s subsidiaties, First Takaful Insurance Company - KPSC,

sold 1ts enure ownership interest of 35% in Neova Sigorta Insurance Company — Turkey, for a total
consideration of USD39,233,449 (equivalent to KD 12,142,762) resulting a loss of KD4,700,119.

Out of the total proceeds, an amount of USD2,113,951 (equivalent to KID654,268) had been
testricted pending finalisation of formalities relating to shares transfer (note 14). During the year, the
formalities have been finalised and the amount was released.

o)) During the prior year, one of the Group’s associates, IFA Hotels & Resorts Company - KPSC, sold
part of its treasury shares which resulted in dilution of the Group’s ownership interestin the associate
from 45.64% to 43.71%. Consequently, the Group recognised loss on deemed disposal of the
associate amountng to KID1,395,947.

Further, during the prior year, one of the Group’s previous associates, Arzan Financial Group for
Finaneing and Investment — KPSC “Arzan”, purchased treasury shares which resulted in increase
the Group’s ownership interest in the associate from 16.87% to 17.24%. Censequently, the Group
recognised a gain amounting to KID93,435,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

10 Net loss on disposal of associates (continued)

<) During the prior yeat, the Group sold part of its ownershuip interest in a previous associate, Arzan
Financial Group for Financing and Investment — KPSC (“Atzan™}, without losing its significant
imnfluence over Arzan, for a consideration of KID656,375 resulting in a loss of IKID663,992.

d) Subsequent to the partial disposal described in note 10¢ above, the Group sold 99,224,026 shaces in
the previous associate to related parties resulting in a gain of KID60,080. As a result of the sale, the
Group assessed that it no longer exercised significant influence over the associate. Accordingly,
management discontinued the use of the equity method of aceounting and accounted for the retained
interest in Arzan as a financial asset at FVTOCI. Consequently, the Group recognised an apgregate
gain on discontinuation of equity method accounting amounting to KiDY15,547.

11 Commission income

During 2019, the Parent Company received USD 10,000,000 (equivalent to KID3,022,500) as commission for
assisting a foreign contractor in obtaining a major constructon project in Kuwait which was recorded as
“deferred revenue” under payables and other labilities in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as the conditions stipulated in the agreement were not completed.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Parent Company completed all conditions stipulated in the
agreement and received a further and final amount of USD10,000,000 (equivalent to KID3,058448).
Consequently, the toral amount of USD20,000,000 (equivalent to KID6,080,948) has been recognised as
commission income in this interim condensed consolidated financial information.

The proceeds received were utilised for funding the investment in joint ventute {note 19.2),

12 Other income

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Reversal of provisions no longer required 106,787 -
Dividend income from investments a{ FVTPL - 43,935
Others 179,056 234,909
285,843 278,844

13 Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the

shareholders of the Parent Company
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company is caleulated by
dividing the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year, excluding treasury shares.

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company (KD} 635,222 8,229,537
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year {shares) 249,279,884 249,279,884

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders
of the Parent Company (Fils) 2.55 33.01
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise of the following:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Cash and bank balances 390,459 1,052,341
Less: restricted balance on borrowings {(note 21) (346,448) {346,446)
Less: restricted balance on sale of an associate {note 10a) - (654,268)
fess: due to banks (241,582) (241,582)
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of cash flows (197,569) (189,955)
15 Investments at fair value through profit or loss
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Local quoted securities 119,546 50,758
Local unquoted securities 138,921 153,170
258,457 203,928

Investments at fair value through profit ot loss amounting to KI2139.694 (31 December 2020: KD150,112) are
pledged against borrowing (note 21) and certain due to related parties (note 29).

16 Receivables and other assets

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2021 2020

KD KD
Financial assets:
Accounts receivable 11,475 11475
Staff receivables 30,908 32,248
Qard Hassan to policyholders' fund 3,268,970 3,213,484
Accrued income 164,611 -
Others 162,230 212,145
Total financial assets 3,638,194 3,469,352
Non-financial assets:
Prepaid expenses 549,273 549,273
Cthers 500,757 207,833
Total non-financial assets 1,050,030 847,106

4,688,224 4,316,458
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

17

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD

Local gquoted securities 15,737,730 5.484 208
Foreign quoted securities 2,754 1,877
Local unquoted securities 10,500 73,500
Foreign undquoted securities 4,799,030 39,031
Managed funds 9,201 8816

20,559,215 5,606,932

c)

These investments ate held for medium to long-term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the Group has
elected to desipnate these investments as at FVTOCI as it believes that recognising shott-term
fluctuations in the fair value of these financial assets in the consolidated statement of profit or loss would
not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these financial assets for long-term purposes and
realising their performance potential in the long run.

During 2020, First Takafol Insurance (a subsidiary) signed an agreement with a related party to nvest
USDD20,000,000 (equivalent ro KID6,106,011) for potential investrnent oppottunities.

During the year, the subsidiary acquired two investments from a related party for a towal considetaton
of AEIDD58,553,295 (equivalent to KID4,799,028) against the advance payment made in the previous year.
However, legal formalives with regard to transfer of the owncrships of these investments to the
subsidiary are still in progress.

Further, during the year, the subsidiary received an amount of USD3,677025 (equivalent to
KI21,112.236) as a refund from this advance payment and remaining balance amounting to KID194,747
has been transferred from advance for investments to recejvables and other assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the reporting date.

Investments at fair walue through othet comptehensive income amounting to KD15,737.463 (31
December 2020: I{ID5,484,089) are pledged agamnst borrowing {(note 21).

The Group’s investments at FVTOCI disaggregated by sectors are as follows:

Financial Real
services estate Total
KD KD KD

3 December 2021
Local quoted securities 15,737,730 - 15,737,730
Foreign guoted secuiities - 2,754 2,754
Local unquoted securities - 10,500 10,500
Foreign unquoted securities - 4,799,030 4,799,030
Managed funds 9,201 - 9,201

15,746,931 4,812,284 20,559,215
31 December 2020
Local gquoted securities 5,484,208 - 5,484 208
Foreign quoted securities - 1,577 1,577
Local unquoted securities - 73,500 73,500
Foreign unguoted securities - 39,031 39.0314
Managed funds 8,616 - 8618

5,492,824 114,108 5,606,932
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

18 Investment properties
The movement in investment properties 1s as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,302,207 1,832,668
Additions during the year - 4,015,000
Change in fair value arising during the year 145,224 (442,973)
Disposals during the year (125,924) (103,148)
Foreign currency adjustment (2,476) 660
Bafance at end of the year 5,319,031 5,302,207

Investment properties owned by a subsidiary with a carrying value of KID3,668,304 are in the name of related
party since the subsidiary is currently unable to transfer the ownership of those propertics in its name (pending
amendment of its articles of association). The related party has signed a letter of assignment statng that it is
holding these properties on hehalf of the subsidiary till all the lepal formalities are completed to transfer the
title deeds of the properties.

Details of fair valuation of investment properties are disclosed in note 30.3.

19 Investment in associates and joint ventures

31 Dec. 21 Dec.
2021 2020
KD Kb
Invastment in associates (19,1) 21,420,655 19,978,512
Investment in joint venture {19.2) 13,947,259 10,325,294
35,367,914 30,303,906
19.1 Investment in associates
The details of the associates are as follows:
Principal Country of 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Company name activities incorporation 2021 2020
% %
Hotel operations
and real estate .
IFA Hotels and Resors Co.~ KPSC development Kuwait 43.71 4371
Zamzam Religious Tourism Co. - KSCC Haj & Umrah kKuwait
services 20 20

Wegaya Takaful Insurance and Reinsurance
Company-8SC (Quoted) (a) Insurance Saudi Arabia 20 20

First Financial Holding Company (b) Financial services Kuwait 48 -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

19 Investment in associates and joint ventures {continued)

19.1  Investment in associates (continued)

The movement of the Investment i associates 1s as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Carrying value at the beginning of the year 19,978,512 60,041,976
Additions {b) 720,000 -
Share of results of associates 147,249 (10,593,588)
Share of other comprehensive income 209,107 690,365
Share of gain/loss)} on partial disposal of interest in subsidiary by an associate 365,787 {21.808)
De-recognition on disposal of an associate - (11,902,064}
Deemed disposal of an associate - (948,384)
Increase on sale of treasury shares by an associate - 310,916
Decrease on purchase of treasury shares by an associate - (93,435)
Impairment (¢} - (8.725,955)
Partial disposal of investment in an associate - (1,375,782)
De-recognition on discontinuing the use of equity method accounting - {7.405,739)
21,420,655 19,978,512

b)

4

The Group has discontinued to recognise its share of further losses of Weqaya Takalul Insugance and
Remsurance Company and the investment is stated at a carrying value of KID1 from 1 April 2014 in
accordance with IAS-28. The Group’s share of unrecognised losses of the associate and 1ts fair value
as at 31 December 2021 cannot be determined because the associate’s shares have been delisted from
ttading since 3 June 2014. If the associate subsequently reports profit, the Group will resume
recognising its share of thesc profits only after its share of profits equal the share of losses not
recognised.

During the year, First Takaful Insurance (a subsidiary) paid K1D720,000 for a 48% ownership interest
in a newly incorporated entity, First Financial Holding Company — WILL (Holding) {(“FFH”)}, with a
total share capital of KID1,500,000.

During the prior year, following partial sale of shares of Arzan Financial Group for Financing and
Investment — KPSC (note 10¢), the Group impaired the remaming investment and recognised an
tmpatwrment loss of KID7,925,000. Further, the Group assessed the fair value of its investment in [FA
Hotels and Resorts as at 31 December 2020 and recognised an impairment loss of KIDS00,000.

Investment in associates amounang to KID19,823,362 (31 December 2020: KID19,133,912) is pledged
against the borrowings (note 21).

Summmasised financial information of Group’s material associates is set out below. The summmarised financial
information below represents the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associates and not the
Group’s share of these amounts adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the Group and its
associates.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

19 Investment in associates and joint ventures (continued)

19,1 Investment in associates (continued)

IFA Hotels and Resorts Co.— KPSC:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Non-current assets 146,193,894 148,370,688
Current assets 86,410,133 103,035,654
Total assets 232,604,027 251,406,342
Non-current liabilities 62,195,665 66,626,535
Current liabilities 144,949,051 181,938,882
Total liabilities 207,144,718 248,565,417
Net assets attributable to the owner of the Parent Company 4,854,482 3,218,407
Non-controlling interests 20,604,829 (377.432)
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Income 24,611,887 7,348,139
Profit/(loss) for the year 873,937 (18,990,577
Cther comprehensive loss for the year (549,849) £3,314,958)
Total comprehensive incemef{loss) for the year 324,058 (22,305,545}

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information of the associate with the cattying amount in the

consolidated statement of financial position 1s given below:

31 Deg. 31 Dec.

2021 2020

KD KD
Group's ownership interest (%) 43.71 4371
Net assets of the associate 4,854,482 3,218 407
Group's share of net assets 2,121,899 1,406 766
Goodwill 18,536,521 18,536,521
Carrying amount 20,658,420 19,943 287
Market price 14,712,779 5274 392

No dividends were recerved from IFAHR during the years 2021 and 2020.

Management believes that the current matket price per share of its investment in IFAHR 1s not indicative of
its fair value. Accordingly, management has obtamed an independent valuation of the investment which did

not show any further tmpairment. (2020: impairment loss of KD800,000).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

19 Investment in associates and joint ventures (continued)

19.2  Investment in joint ventures
The details of the joint venture are as follows:

Principal Country of 31 Dec. 31 Dec.

Company name activities incorporation 2021 2020
% Yo

Um-Al-Hayman Holding Company — WLL Holdingfinvestment Kuwait 50 50

The movement of the investment in joint venture 1s as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Carrying value at the beginning of the year 10,325,394 2,451,200
Additions {note 11} - 7,448,800
Share of result of joint veniure 367,887 425,394
Share of other comprehensive income 3,253,978 -
13,947,259 10,325,394

a}  The carrying value represents the Group’s share of the net assets of the joint venture.

b)  Investment in joint venture is pledged against the borrowing faciliies obtained to finance the
underlying project (note 27by).

20 Payables and other liabilities

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Accounts payable and accruals 2,089,107 1,731,760
Dividend payable 48,442 48,442
Provisions for KFAS, NLST and Zakat 6,006,375 5981 438
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits and leave 582,585 584,940
Bue to policyholders 1,724,863 2,583,735
Polieyholders’ deficit reserve 3,268,970 3,213 484
Cther liabilities 127,558 77477
13,847,900 14,221,276
21 Borrowings
The details of loan balances and bank facilities of the Group acc as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Borrowings denominated in;
kuwait Dinar 8,555,000 8,555,000
S Dollar 19,813,750 19,862,875

28,368,750 28,417,875
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

21 Borrowings (continued)
The details of loan balances and bank facilities of the Group are as follows:

a}) The borrowing in Kuwait Dinar is due to alocal bank which matred on 31 December 2019 carrying annual
interest rate of 2.25% above Central Bank of Kuwait discount rate. The loan is secured by pledge of a financial
portfolio. During 2 prior year, the Parent Company filed a legal case against the bank to determine the amount
due to the bank. The court referred the case to the experts’ department and the hearing was scheduled to be
held on 23 June 2021 which was postponed till 17 November 2021 on which the Parent Company objected
on the expetts’ report and accordingly, referred back to the experts’ department for a second review which
is schedule to be held on 15 May 2622. In the meantime, during the year ended 31 December 2020, the banlk
obtained a cauticnary order in its favour which was suspended as the Patent Company objected its execudon.
The Court of First Instance rejected the objection which was upheld by the Court of Appeal on 15 December
2020. The Parent Company has filed an appeal with the Court of Cassation, however, no heaning has been
scheduled as of the date of the issue of these consclidated financial statements. In a related legal case filed by
the Parent Company, the Court of Appeals cancelled the cautionary order on 24 Ocrober 2021 as 1f it was
not issued.

Management of the Parent Company believes that the banlk 1s unable to execute the contracts untl the final
ruling of the original case is made which 1s currently with the experts’ department of Ministry of Justice.

b) Theloan denominated in the US Dollar has been obrained from Al-Nozha Al-Dawliya Real Estate Company
WLL ("Al Nozha"), a related party, carrying annual intezest rate of 1.5%. The loan is repayable in four annual
equivalent instalments of USD3,275,000 (equivalent to KID990,688) beginning 31 March 2021 ending on 31
March 2024 and with final instalmenc of USD52,400,000 {equivalent to IKID15,851,000) to be repaid on 31
March 2025, The loan is secured by shares of the Parent Company, shares of associates and investments al
FVTOCIL In accordance with the contractual terms and conditons of the loan, an instalment of
USID>3,275,000 (equivalent to KID990,688) was due on 31 March 2021, However, during the year, the Group
applied for an extension to postpone the instalment which was approved by the related party all 31 March
2022,

The borrowings ate secured by Group’s assets are as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2021 2020

KD KD
Restricted balances (nota 14) 346,446 346,448
Investments at FVTPL (note 15} 13,970 10,139
Investments at FYTOC! (note 17) 15,737 463 5,484 089
Investment in associates and joint ventures (note 19} 19,823,362 19,133,912
Investment in subsidiares (note 6) 588 583
Total assets pledged 35,921,829 24 975,169

22 Share capital
The authorised, issued and paid up share capital of the Parent Company comprised of 266,732,550 shares of 100
Fils each, all fully paid (31 December 2020: 266,732,550 shares of 100 Fils each).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

23 Treasury shares

31 Dec, 31 Dec.
2021 2020
Nurmber of ireasury shares (shares) 17,452,666 17,452 668
Fercentage of treasury shares to paid up capital (%) 6.54 6.54
Cost (KD} 32,757,404 32,757,404
Market Vatue (KD) 1,972,151 1,034,943

24 Reserves

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company before contribution to KFAS, Zakat provision, NLST
provision and directors’ remuneration is to be transferred to stamtory reserve. No transfer 13 required in a year
when losses are made or where cumulative losses exist. The Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such
annual transter when the reserve equals or exceeds 50% of the paid-up share capital.

Distribution of the statutory reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend of
5% of patd-up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not sufticient for the payment of a
dividend of that amount.

Voluntary reserve

In accordance with the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit attributable to sharcholders
of the Parent Company before conuibution to KFAS, Zakat provision, NLST proviston and directors’
remuneration 15 to be transferred to voluntary reserve. The Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such
transfers by a resolution of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors. There are no testrictions on distribution
of voluntary reserve.

No transfer is required in a year when losses are made or when cumulative losses exist.

25 Fiduciary accounts

The Parent Company previously managed portfolios on behalf of others, mutual funds and maintams cash
balances and securities in fiductary accounts, which were not reflecred in the consolidated statement of financial
position. However, as a result of the legal status of the Parent Company changed to a holding company, it is
no longer allowed to manage portfolios. The existing porttolio balance is either currently bemng disposed of ot
transferred to other entities. Assets under management on 31 December 2021 amounted to KID2,078,055 (31
December 2020: KD862,143). The Group carned a management fee of KD Nil (31 December 2020: KD Nuil)

from these activities.

26 Annual general assembly

The boatd of directors of the Parent Company proposed not to discribute any dividend for the year ended 31
December 2021, This proposal is subject to the approval of the Parent Company’s sharelolders at the Annual
General Assembly,

The ordinary General Assembly of the shareholders of the Parent Company held on 3 June 2021 approved the
consohdated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors’ proposal not to distribute
dividends for the year ended 31 December 2020 and to pay the board of directors an amount of KKID50,000 as
remunetation for the year ended 31 December 2020. Remunetation of board of directors has been expensed
in the interim condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss for the current period under “Other operating
cxpenscs and charges”.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

27 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

{a} The Group has the following commitments:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Estimated and contracted capital expenditure for construction of properties
under development and trading properties 23,972 793,180
Finance guarantees 2,916 11,808
Post-dated cheques issued 327,634 1,892,972
Group's share of engineering, procurement and construction agreement of a
plant in an underlying project of a joint venture 76,530,749 32,674,809
Group's share of fuiure land lease payments in an underlying project of a joint
venture 4,473,333 4,333,333
tncorporation of a subsidiary - 1,500,000
81,058,604 41,206,082
The Group expects o finance the future expenditure commiunents [remn the following sources:
a) Sale of invesunent properties
b) Share capital mcrease
¢ Advances provided by the shareholders, related entities and joint ventures
dy Borrowings, if required
(b) The Group has the following cenungent habilities:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Contingent liabilities
Corporate guarantee of borrowings by joint venture {note 19.2b) 9,804,594 10,325,394
Group's share of guarantee provided by a joint venture 27,603,633 27,603,633
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

29

Related party transactions and balances

Related parties represent major shareholders, ditectors and key management personnel of the Group and their
close family members, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or sipnificanty influenced by such pardes. Pricing
policies and rerms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management. Transactions between the
Parent Company and its subsidiaties which are related parties of the Parent Company have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

Details and transactions with related parties are as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2024 2020
KD KD
Balances and transactions included in the consolidated statement of
financial position:
Purchase of investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
{note 170) 4,799,028 -
Advance for investments (note 17b) - 6,106,011
Purchase of investment properties (note 18) - 3,611,340
Due from related parties {a)
- Due from associates 16,628,773 16,638,604
- Due from other related parties 2,786,976 2,430,843
19,415,749 19,069,447
Due to related parties {b and ¢)
Due to other related parties 6,406,417 6,228,911
Receivables and cther assets 412,260 -
Borrowings 19,813,750 19,862,875

a)

b)

Due from related parties are non-interest bearing and have no specific repayment terms.

Due to related parties include balance amounting to KI2433,284 (31 December 2020: KID433,284)
which carries interest at 4.75% (31 December 2020: 4.75%) per annum and s payable in 2024. The
remaining balances of KI1D5,973,133 (31 December 2020: KID5,795,627) are non-interest bearing and

have no specific repayment terms.

The Group has pledged part of 1ts equity interest in Fiest Takaful Insurance Company — KPSC, a

subsidiary, against certain amounts due to related parties (note 6).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Parent Company disposed of certain shares in a
subsidiary to certain rclated parties as settlement of amounts due to those related parties resulting in a

loss of KIDG01,109 which was recognised directly in cquuty.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

29 Related party transactions and balances (continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2024 2020
KD KD

Transactions included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Advisary fees {note 7) 950,000 -
Other income 164,611 30,000
Other operating expenses and charges 292,759 1,122,000
Finance costs 320,468 104,448
Gain on settlement of borrowings (note 9a) - 10,223,646
Gain on disposal of assoclate - 60,080
Key management compensation;

Short-term banefits 400,085 408,863
Cirectors’ remuneration {included in operating expenses and charges) 50,000 -

30 Fair value measurement

30,1  Fait value hierarchy
Fair value represents the price that would be recerved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a bability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measnrement date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated staternent of financial position
are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability
of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

s Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for the assct or liability, cither directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {1.e. derived from prices); and

¢ Level 3 fair value measurements are those detrved from valuation techniques that include mputs for the asset
or liabiliry that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs).

30.2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated statement of
tinaneial position atre as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2021 2020

KD KD
Financial assets:
At amoriised cost:
- Cash and cash equivalents (note 14) 300,459 1,052,341
- Receivables and other assets (note 16) 3,638,194 3,468,352
- Due from related parties (note 29) 19,415,749 19,089,447
- Advance for investments (note 29} - 6,106,011
At fair value:
- Investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 15} 258,467 203,928
- Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income {note 17} 20,559,215 5,606,932

44,262,084 35,508,011




ind Advizars Molding - HPAED nrd B

48

I oo 2

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

30 Fair value measurement (continued)

30.2  Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Financial liabilities:
At amortised cost:
- Payables and other liabilities {note 20} 13,847,900 14,221,276
- Due to related parties (note 29) 6,408 417 6,228 911
- Due to barnks (note 14) 241 582 241,582
- Borrowings {note 21} 28,368,750 28 417 875
48,664,649 49,109,644

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are stated at
amortised cost, approximate their fair values.

The level within which the financial asset ot liability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of
significant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated statement of
financial position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD

31 December 2021
Investments at FVTPL
Investments held for frading:
Local quoted securities a 119,546 - - 119,546
Local unqueted securities b - - 138,921 138,921
Investments at FVYTOC!
Local guoted securities a 15,737,730 - - 15,737,730
Foreign quoted secunties a 2,754 - : 2,754
Managed funds e - 9,201 - 9,204
Local unquoted securities b - - 10,500 10,500
Foreign unquoted securities b - e 4,798,030 4,799,030

15,860,030 9,201 4,948,451 20,817,682
31 December 2020
Investments at FVTPL
Investments held for trading:
Local quoted securities a B0, 758 - - 80,758
Local unquoted securities b - - 153,170 153,170
Investments at FVTOC!
Local quoted securities a 5,484,208 - - 5,484 208
Foreign quoted securities a 1,577 - - 1.577
Managed funds G - 8,616 = 8,616
Local unquoted securities b 73,500 73,500
Foreign unquotad securities b - - 39,031 30,031

5,536,543 8616 265,701 5,810,860

There have been no significant transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the reporting pertod.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

30 Fair value measurement (continued)
30.2  Fair value measurement of financial insttuments {continued)

Measurement ar fair value
The methods and valuation technigues used for the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged compared
to the previous reporting petiod,

a) Quoted secutrities
Al the listed equity securties are publicly traded in stock exchanges. Fair values have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting date.

b) Unquoted securities

The consclidated financial statements include investments in unlisted securites which are measured at fair
value. Fair value 15 estimated using 2 discounted cash flow model or other valuation techniques which include
some assumprions that are not supportable by observable market prices or rates.

<} Investment in managed funds
Investment funds managed by other mainly compuise of unquoted units and the fair value of these units has
been deterniined based on net assets values reported by the fund manager as of the reporting date.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of the financial assets at FVIPL and FYTOCI
are determined (in particular, the valuaton techniques(s) and inputs used).

31 Dec. 31 Dec. Fair value
2021 2020 hierarchy
KD KD

fnvestment at FVYTPL:
Local quoted securities 115,546 50,758 1
Local unquoted securities 138,921 153,170 3
Investments at FVTOCH
Local quoted securities 18,737,730 5,484 208 1
Foreign quoted securities 2,754 1577 1
Managed funds 9,21 58616 2
Local unquoted securities 10,500 73,500 3
Foreign unquoted securities 4,799,030 39,031 3

The impact on consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income would be immaterial if the relevant risk used to estimate fair value of level 3
investments were changed by 5%.



el . Ty
- MESE ase Debsidieren i

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

30 Fair value measurement {(continued)
30.2  Fair value measurement of financial instruments {continued)

Levcl 3 fair value measurements

The Group's financial assets classified in level 3 uses valuation techmques based on significant inputs that are
not based on observable market data. The financial instruments within this level can be reconciled from
beginning to ending balances as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Investments at FVTPL:

Balance at the beginning of the year 183,170 2,905,837
Disposal - (2,891,282)
Gains or losses recognised in:

- Consclidated statement of profit or loss {14,249) 138815
Balance at the end of the year 138921 153,170
Investments at FVTOCK:

Balance at the beginning of the year 112,531 4 486,690
Additions 4,799,028 -
Disposals (28,641) {2,910,837)
Gains or losses recognised in:

- Other comprzhensive loss {73,388) (1,463,322}
Balance at the end of the year 4,809,530 112,531

30.3 Fair value measurement of non-financial assets

The Group also measures non-financial assets such as mvestment properties at fair value at each annual
reporting date. The following table shows the levels within the hieratchy of non-financial agssets measurcd at
fair value on a recurring basis:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD Kb

31 December 2021

Investment properties

Land in Jordan - - 322,395 322,395
Land in JAE - - 329,476 329,476
Apartments in UAE - - 3,668,204 3,668,304
Buildings in Lebanon - - 998,856 998 856

- - 5,319,031 5,319,031

31 December 2020
Investment properties

Land in Jordan - - 359 242 359,242
Land in UAE - - 330,293 330,293
Apartments in UAE - - 3,611,340 3,611,340
Buildings in Lebanon - - 1,001,332 1,001,332

- 5,302,207 5,302,207
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

30 Fair value measurement (continued)

30.3  Fair value measurement of non-financial asscts (contnued)

The fair value of the investment properties has been determined based on valuations obtained from
independent valuces, who are specialised in valuing these types of investment propetties. The significant inputs
and assumptions are developed in close consultation with management,

The fair value of investment properties was deterrmined using the market compatison approach. The market
approach reflects observed prices for recent market transactions for similar properties and incorporates
adjustments for factors specific to the land in question, including plot size, location, encumbrances, current use
and construction costs.

The non-financial assets within level 3 can be reconciled from beginning to ending balances as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD

Investment properties:
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,302,207 1,832,668
Additions - 4,015,000
Disposal (125,924} {103,148)
Gains or losses recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss:
- Change in fair value 145,224 (442,973)
Foreign currency translation differences {2,476) 660
Balance at the end of the year 5,219,034 5,302,207
Total amount included in the consclidated statement of profit or loss for

ungreaiised loss on level 3 assets 124,650 (442 973)

31 Risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s activities expase it to variety of financial risks: magket tisks (including currency risk, interest rate
tisk, and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The board of directors of the Parent Company 1s ulimately responsible for setting out risk sirategies and
objectives and policies for their management. 'The Group’s tisk management is carried out by the central rislk
management function and focuses on actively securing the Group’s short to medivm term cash flows by
minimizing the potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance through internal risk reports
which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. Long term financial investments are managed to
generate lasting returns.

The Group does not enter into or rade financial instruments, including dervative financial instruments, for
speculative purposes.

The most significant financial rsks to which the Group is exposed to are described below.
311 Matket trisk

ay Foreign currency risk management

The Group mainly operates in the GCC, South Africa and other Middle Eastern countries and is exposed to
foreign currency risk arising from various foreign currency exposures, ptimatily with respect to UAE Dirham,
Euro and US Dollar. Foreign exchange risk atises from funire commercial transactions, recognised assets and
Liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

311 Market risk (continued)

a) Foreign currency tisk management (continued)

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Kuwaiti Dinar cash flows are monitored and
forward exchanged contracts are entered into in accordance with the Group’s risk management polices.
Generally, the Group’s risk management procedures distinpuish short-term foreign currency cash flows (due
within twelve months) from longer-term cash flows, Where the amounts to be paid and received in specific
currency ate expected to largely offset one another, no further hedging activity is undertaken. Forwatd foreign
contracts are mainly cntered mnto for sighificant long-term foreign currency exposures that are not expected to
be offset by other foreign currency transactions,

The Group had the following significant exposures denominated in foreign currencies, translated into Kuwaid
Dinar at the closing rate at year end:

3 Dec. 31 Dec.
2024 2020
KD KD
Euro 20,407 22,334
Us Dollar {19,581,398) (19,928,301}
UAE Dirhams 14,352,912 14,418,569

If the Kuwaiti Dinar had strengrhened/weakened against the foreign currencies by 5% (2020: 5%), then this
would have the following impact on the loss for the year. There is no impact on the Group’s equity.

Loss/profit for the year

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Euro +1,020 1,117
Us Dollar + 879,070 + 898,415
UAE Dirhams + 719,146 + 720,928

The above percentages have been determined based on the average toreign exchange rates in the previous
twelre months.

Fxposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the vear depending on the volume and natore of the
transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk.

There has been no change during the year in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis.

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future profitability or the
fair vahies of financial instruments, The Group is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its borrowings
which are both at fixed rate and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an
appropriate mix between fizxed and floaung cate botrowings.

Positions are monitored regularly to ensure posidons ate maintained within established limits.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
311 Market tisk (continued)

b) Interest rate risk (continued)

The tollowing table dlustrates the sensitivity of the {loss)/profit for the year to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates of + 1% and — 1% (31 December 2020: + 1% and —1%0} with effect from the beginning of the
year. Thesc changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of current market condition.
The caleulations are based on the Group’s financial instruments held at each date of the consolidated staternent
of financial position. All other variables ate held constant. There has been no change during the year in the
methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis.

Year ended 31 Dec. 2021 Year 31 Dec. 2020
+ 1% 1% +1 % -1 %
KD KD KD KD
Loss for the year 288,020 {288,020} 288,512 {288.512)

c) Equity price risk :

This 15 a r1sk that the value of finanaal instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether
these changes are caused by factors specific o individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all
instruments, traded in the market. The Group is exposed to equity price risk with respect to its listed equity
investments, which are primarily located in Kuwait. Equity investments are classified as investments at
I'VTOCI and investments at FVTPL.

The equity price nisk sensitivity 15 determined on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date, If
equity prices had been 5% higher, the effect on the equity for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
would have been as follows. There is no significant effect on the profit or loss.

3 Dec, 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Investments at FYTOCI 787,024 274,289

For a 5% decrease in the equity prices, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the equity for the year,
and balances shown above would be negative.

31.2  Credicnisk

Credit 113k 1s the nisk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur 2 financial loss. The Group’s credit policy and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. The Group seeks to avoid undue concentrations of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific
locations or business through diversification of its activities. It also abtains security when appropriate.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is limired to the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the date
of the consolidated statement of financial position, as summarized below:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Bank balances {note 14) 390,459 1,052,341
Receivables and other assets (hote 16) 3,638,194 3,489,352
Due from related parties {note 29) 19,415,749 19,069,447
Advance for investments (note 17k) - 6,106,011

23,444,402 29,697,151
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31 Risk management objectives and policies (continued}

312 Credit risk (continued)

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified etther individually
or by group, and incorporates this information into its credir risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost,
external credit ratings and/or repotts on customers and other counterparties ate obtained and used. The
Group’s policy 1s to deal only with credicworthy counterparties. The Group’s management considers thar all the
abowe financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired for each of the reporting dates under review are of
good credit quality.

Bank balances are maintained with high credit quality financial institutions.

In respect of receivables and other assets, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to
any single counterparty.

The credit risk for the amounts due from related parties and advance for investments s ¢onsidered low by
management as the counterparties are reputable Group companies with no lustory of default. Accordingly,
based on management’s assessment, the expected credit loss impact arising from such financial assets are
insignificant to the Group.

Information on other significant concentrations of credit risk is set out in note 31.3.
31.3 Concentration of assets

The Group operates mr different geographical areas. The distribution of financial assets by geographic region 1s as
tollows:

Middle East Asia Europe Total
KD KD KD KD

At 31 December 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 366,922 - 23,537 390,459
Investments at fair value through profit or Ioss 258,467 - - 258,467
Receivables and other assets 3,638,194 - - 3,638,194
Due from related parties 19,415,749 - - 19,415,749
Investments at FVTOCI 20,550,014 - 9,201 20,559,215

44,229,346 - 32,738 44,262,084
At 31 December 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 1,026,870 - 25,471 1,052,341
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 203,928 - - 203,928
Receivables and other assets 3,469,352 - - 3,469,352
Due from related parties 19,069,447 - - 19,069,447
Investmenis at FVTOCI 5,578,608 19,708 8,616 5,606,932
Advance for investments 6,106,011 - - 6,106,011

35,454 216 19,708 34,087 35,508,011

314 Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that 1t will always have sutficient liquidity
to meet its liabilittes when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or nisking damage to the Group’s reputation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31 Risk management cbjectives and policies (continued)

314  Liquidity risk management (continued)

Ultimate responsibiity for liquidity tisk management tests with the board of dircetors, which has built an
appropuate liquidity risk management framewotk for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaning
adequate teserves, banking facilides and reserve botrowing facilides, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the mamnurity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities based on the remaining period art the financial position
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual discounted cash
tlows,

On Up to Over 1
demand 1 year year Total

KD KD KD KD
31 December 2021
Financial liabilities
Payables and other liabilities - 8,240,336 5,607,564 13,847,900
Due to related parties - 5973133 433,284 6,406,417
Due to banks 241,582 - - 241,582
Borrowings 8,555,000 1,981,375 17,832,375 28,368,750

8,796,582 16,194,844 23,873,223 48,864,649

31 December 2020
Financial liabilities

FPayables and other liabilities - 7815215 6,406,061 14,221,276
Due to related parties - 6,228,911 - 6,228,911
Due to banks 241,582 - - 241,682
Borrowings 8,655,000 993 144 18,869,731 28,417,875

8,798,582 156,037,270 25,275,792 49,109,644

Matuority profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2021:

Within Over
1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD

31 December 2021
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 390,459 - 390,459
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 258,467 - 258,467
Receivables and other asseis 1,419,254 3,268,970 4,688,224
Due from related parties 19,415,749 - 19,415,749
Investments at FVTOCI - 20,559,215 20,559,218
Investment properties . 5,319,031 5,319,031
Investment in associates and joint ventures - 35,367,914 35,367,914
Property and equipment - 6,619 6,619

21,483,929 64,521,749 86,005,678
Liabilities
Payables and other liabilities 8,240,336 5,607,564 13,847,900
Due 1o related parties 5,973,133 433,284 6,406,417
Due to banks 241,582 - 241,582
Borrowings 10,536,375 17,832,375 28,368,750

24,991,426 23,873,223 48,864,649
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31 Risk management objectives and policies {continued)

314  Liquidity risk management (continued)
Matusity profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2020

Within Over
1 yoar 1 year Total
KD KD KD

31 December 2020
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 1,052,341 - 1,052,341
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 203,928 - 203,928
Receivables and other assets 1,052,688 3,263,770 4,316,458
Due from related parties 10,069,447 - 19,069 447
Investments at FVTOC] - 5,606,932 5,606,932
Advance for investmenis 6,106,011 - 6,106,011
Investment properties - 5.302.207 5,302,207
Investment in associates and joint ventures - 30,303,906 30,303,908
Property and equipment - 10,413 10,413

27,484 415 44,487,228 71,971,643
Liabilities
Payables and other liabilities 7815215 6,406,061 14,221,276
Due to related parties 6,228.911 - 6,228,911
Due to banks 241,582 - 241,582
Barrowings 9,548,144 18,869,731 28,417 875

23,833,852 25275792 49,109,644

32 Capital management objectives
The Grroup’s capiral management objectives are to ensure the Group’s ability to confinue as a going concern
and to provide adequate remen to its shareholders through the oprimization of the capiral structure.

The Group manages the capital structiure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions
and risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The capttal structure of the Group consists of the following:
Gearing ratio

The Group’s risk management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
management considers the cost of capieal and the risks associared with each class of capital.

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2021 2020
KD KD
Debt (a) 28,368,750 28,417 875
Cash and cash equivalents (note 14} 197,569 138,855
Net debt 28,566,319 28,607,830
Equity () ; 37,141,028 22 861,999

Net debt to equity ratic 7% 125%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

32 Capital management objectives (continued)
Gearing ratio (continued)

a Debt is defined as long- and short-term borrowings.

b. Ecquity includes all capiral and reserves of the Group.

33 Comparative amounts
Certaln comparative amounts have been reclassified 1o conform to the presentation 1 the cucrent year, Such
reclassification does not atfect previously reported net assets, net equity ot net resulis for the year.

34 Covid19 pandemic impact

The outbreak of Coronavirus (“COVID19”} pandemic and related global responses have caused material
distuptions to businesses around the world, leading to an economic slowdown. Governments worldwide
imposed travel bans and strict quaranting measures in order to slow the spread of Covid-19. Business arc dealing
with lost revenue and disrupted supply chains. While the country has started o ease the lockdown, the
relasation has been gradual. Global and local equity markets have expenenced significant volatility and
weakness. While governments and central banks have reacled with various financial packages and reliefs
designed to stabilise economic conditions, the duration and extent of the impact of the COVIDI19 outbreak
remains unclear at this time. However, management of the Group is actively monitoring any effects of
COVID1Y may have on its business operations and financial performance.

Management has updated its assumptions with respect to judgements and estimates on various account balances
which may be potentially impacted due to continued uncertainties in the volatile economic environment in
which the Group conducts its operations. The reported amounts best represent managerment’s assessment
based on observable information. Markets, however, remain volatle and asser carrying values remain sensitive
to market fluctuations.

Management is aware that a continued and persistent disruption could negatively impact the financial position,
performance and cash flows of the Group ia the future. Management continues to closely monitor the market
trends, its supply-chain, industry reports and cash flows to minimise any negative impact on the Group.
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